
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE
MARICOPA ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS

TRANSPORTATION REVIEW COMMITTEE
 

January 28, 2016
Maricopa Association of Governments Office

302 North First Avenue, Suite 200, Saguaro Room
Phoenix, Arizona

MEMBERS ATTENDING
  Avondale: David Janover
  ADOT: Mike Kies
  Apache Junction: Giao Pham
  Buckeye: Scott Lowe
*Cave Creek: Ian Cordwell
  Chandler: Mike Mah for Dan Cook
  El Mirage: Jorge Gastelum
#Fountain Hills: Randy Harrel  
*Gila Bend: Ernie Rubi
  Gila River Indian Community: Tim Oliver
  Gilbert: Leah Hubbard
  Glendale: Debbie Albert, Vice Chair
  Goodyear: Cato Esquivel
  Litchfield Park: Woody Scoutten
  Maricopa (City): Paul Jepson

   Maricopa County: Clem Ligocki for Jennifer
Toth

  Mesa: Jeff Martin for Scott Butler
*Paradise Valley: Jim Shano
  Peoria: Andrew Granger
  Phoenix: Kini Knudson for Ray Dovalina
#Pinal County: Louis Andersen
 Queen Creek: Jamie Bennett for Mohamed 

Youssef
  Scottsdale: Todd Taylor for Paul Basha
  Surprise: Mike Gent
  Tempe: Shelly Seyler
  Valley Metro: Wulf Grote for John Farry
#Wickenburg: Vince Lorefice
#Youngtown: Grant Anderson

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS ATTENDING
*Street Committee: Chris Hauser, City of El 

Mirage
*ITS Committee: Marshall Riegel, City of     
     Phoenix
#FHWA: Ed Stillings 

*Bicycle/Pedestrian Committee: Jim Hash,    
    City of Mesa
*Transportation Safety Committee: Dana 

 Alvidrez, City of Chandler

* Members neither present nor represented by proxy.   + - Attended by Videoconference
    # - Attended by Audioconference

OTHERS PRESENT
John Bullen, MAG
Monique de los Rios-Urban, MAG
Bob Hazlett, MAG
Teri Kennedy, MAG
Audra Koester Thomas, MAG
David Massey, MAG
Nathan Pryor, MAG
Brian Rubin, MAG
Jason Stephens, MAG
Stephen Tate, MAG

Jenny Bixby, Jacobs
Maria Deeb, Mesa
Kiran Guntupalli, Glendale
Kwi-Sung Kang, ADOT
Christine McMurdy, Goodyear
Randall Overmyer, CivTech
Mike Sabatini, Michael Baker International
Lynn Sugiyama, ADOT
Rebecca Zook, Goodyear

1



1. Call to Order 
 

Vice Chair Debbie Albert called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. Vice Chair Albert noted 
that the quorum requirement for the January 28, 2016 Transportation Review Committee 
meeting was 13 committee members. Vice Chair Albert informed the committee that there 
was one handout at the table. 

 
2. Approval of Draft October 1st, 2015 Minutes 
 

Vice Chair Albert asked the committee if there were any comments on the draft October 1, 
2015, meeting minutes. There were none. Mr. Jeff Martin moved to approve the minutes. 
Mr. Woody Scoutten seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously. 

 
3. Call to the Audience 

 
There were no public comments from the audience.  

 
4. Transportation Director's Report 
 

Vice Chair Albert invited Mr. Eric Anderson, MAG Transportation Director, to provide the 
Transportation Director's Report. 
 
Mr. Anderson stated that the December Regional Area Road Fund (RARF) revenues were 
up 2.5% over the previous month, noting that these reflect November business activity. He 
noted that this does not include the holiday shopping season. He stated that RARF revenues 
are up 4.5% year-to-date. 
 
Mr. Anderson stated that the November Highway User Revenue Fund (HURF) revenues 
showed 5.8% growth, with year-to-date growth of 6.1%. He noted the impact of lower 
gasoline prices with gasoline tax revenues up 6.3%, diesel tax revenues up 5.5%, and 
Vehicle License Tax (VLT) revenues up 6.9%. 
 
Mr. Anderson stated that the Phoenix City Council had passed an acceleration of projects 
tied to Proposition 104. He noted that the South Central light rail to Baseline Road, the 
Northwest Extension Phase II to Metrocenter, and Phase I of the I-10 West light rail to the 
state capitol had been accelerated to an expected opening in 2023.  

 
Mr. Anderson stated that ADOT has selected a development team for the South Mountain 
Freeway and that negotiations are underway on the contract. He stated that he expects that 
after the negotiations are complete and costs are finalized, a rebalancing of the Regional 
Freeway and Highway Program can begin. He stated that he expects significant revenue 
will be available for reprogramming. 
 
Mr. Michael Kies noted that the program rebalancing would occur in the spring and that 
programming assumptions after the rebalancing would be reflected in the next five-year 
program. Mr. Anderson stated that depending on the timing that may be correct, but that 
the current five-year program nay need to be amended. He added that he expects projects to 
be added to the 2020-2025 time period. He stated that the rebalancing probably will not be 

 
 2 



finalized by June and that it will need to go through the air quality conformity process. 
 
Mr. Kies stated that ADOT will be taking the five-year program to the public in March. Mr. 
Anderson responded that the rebalancing will not be complete by then. 
 
Vice Chair Albert thanked Mr. Anderson for his report. 

 
5. Consent Agenda 
 

Vice Chair Albert directed the Committee's attention to the consent agenda items. 
 

Vice Chair Albert asked the Committee if there were any questions or comments. There 
were none. 

 
Mr. Jeff Martin moved to approve the consent agenda. Mr. Scott Lowe seconded the 
motion. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
5A B Project Changes - Amendment and Administrative Modification to the FY 2014-2018 
MAG Transportation Improvement Program and to the 2035 Regional Transportation Plan 
 
The MAG Transportation Review Committee, by consent, recommended approval of 
amendments and administrative modifications to the FY 2014-2018 MAG Transportation 
Improvement Program, and, as appropriate, to the 2035 Regional Transportation Plan. 
 
5B B ADOT Red Letter Process 
 
The MAG Transportation Review Committee, by consent, received the list of ADOT Red 
Letter Process notifications from July 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015. 
 

6.  Programming of Bicycle and Pedestrian Projects for MAG Federal Congestion Mitigation 
and Air Quality Improvement Program and Transportation Alternatives Program Funding 
in the Draft FY 2017-2021 MAG Transportation Improvement Program 

 
Vice Chair Albert invited Ms. Teri Kennedy to present this item. 
 
Ms. Kennedy stated that the programming process in this item covered two funding 
sources: the Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program (CMAQ) and 
the Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP). She noted that there is $12.9 million in 
TAP funding and $23.7 million in CMAQ funding available for bicycle and pedestrian 
projects. 
 
Ms. Kennedy stated that, prior to the issuance of the call for projects, MAG staff addressed 
some comments given by the Committee. She noted that both the Transportation Review 
Committee and Management Committee had asked that MAG simplify the application 
process and modify the project score weightings. 
 
Ms. Kennedy stated that during April, May, and June the Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Committee addressed the application and modified project scoring. She stated that there 

 
 3 



was heavy weighting placed on the quantitative scores and noted that the qualitative scores 
were based on the Bicycle and Pedestrian Committee’s reading of the applications. She 
added that the air quality score for CMAQ funded projects is a cost-effectiveness score 
based on the reduction of pollutants in air quality nonattainment areas. She noted that the 
committee rank is the final score from the Bicycle and Pedestrian Committee including 
both the application and presentations given to the Committee. 

 
Ms. Kennedy stated that the application for CMAQ and TAP funding was combined so 
agencies only had to full out one application for both funding sources. She then presented 
programming priorities for projects with tied scores. She stated that CMAQ funding will be 
used first for air quality improvement considerations. She stated that only whole projects 
will be funded. She stated that after projects have been assigned a funding type according 
to the first two criteria, the rank order will be followed to determine which programming 
year the project goes into. She noted that MAG staff reserves the right to move funding 
types to ensure the program is balanced and that all obligation authority is used. 
 
Ms. Kennedy presented an example overview of the project ranking sheets and criteria, 
showing how a combined rank is determined and how projects would be funded in case of 
ties. She noted that if a project is selected for both CMAQ and TAP, it will be funded with 
CMAQ. 

 
Ms. Kennedy noted that FHWA provided guidance that HAWK signals were not 
appropriate projects to be funded with CMAQ as they can increase congestion, so all 
HAWK signal projects would be funded with TAP funding. 

 
Ms. Kennedy presented the rankings of projects recommended to receive CMAQ and TAP  
funding by funding year. She stated that there was $200,000 left over after fully funding 
projects on the list and that she asked Glendale if they would accept partial funding for the 
71st Avenue project. She stated that Glendale said they would not. She stated that they 
moved to the next projects in the ranking until Glendale accepted funding for the Paradise 
Lane project, which the Bicycle and Pedestrian Committee evaluated and recommended. 
She stated that there was approximately $9,000 in TAP funding left over in the end. She 
stated that the projects were put in order based on their requested year of funding, which 
left a $1.7 million surplus in 2018, a deficit of $2.5 million in 2019, and a surplus of 
$760,000 in 2020. She stated that MAG requested volunteers to advance to 2018 to balance 
the program. She stated that Surprise requested the Bullard Road project be advanced to 
2018 at the Bicycle and Pedestrian Committee and that the Committee also recommended 
moving the $9000 of leftover TAP funding to the Glendale Paradise Lane project so it 
would be closer to fully funded. 

 
Ms. Kennedy stated that the application process was very smooth, which could be 
attributed to the Congestion Management Process (CMP) working group and Ms. Monique 
de los Rios-Urban who developed the CMP tools. She noted that there were 37 applications 
with 15-20 pages each, which was a lot of reading for the committee members. The 
evaluation tools developed assisted members in their review process. 
 
Ms. Kennedy stated that after the Regional Council approves funding for projects, the 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Committee will address the recently completed process and look at 
ways to improve it further. 

 
 4 



 
Mr. Eric Anderson stated that this was a more extensive presentation than is typically done. 
He stated that the process was soundly welcomed by the evaluators of these projects. He 
noted that this process is a good example of how MAG continues to provide more guidance 
on projects and be more explicit about the evaluation criteria being used. He stated that the 
criteria were developed with discussion by the member agencies. He added that this is a 
good example of continuing to refine the prioritization process and using criteria that make 
sense. He noted that the end result is that this process has resulted in better and more cost 
effective projects for the region. 
 
Ms. Leah Hubbard expressed her thanks to everyone involved in the programming process. 

 
Mr. Mike Kies stated that this was a great overview of the process. He asked if the process 
includes the allocation of CMAQ-2.5 funding. Ms. Kennedy responded that CMAQ-2.5 
funding was programmed through a separate process and was approved by Regional 
Council the previous day. She noted that the CMAQ-2.5 funds are programmed for paving 
of unpaved roads in the Pinal County PM-2.5 nonattainment area and that the Street 
Committee technically evaluates the projects for funding along with the Air Quality score. 

 
Mr. Jeff Martin moved to approve the recommended priority list of projects as presented. 
Ms. Leah Hubbard seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously. 

 
7. Federal Fiscal Year 2016 Sub-allocated Federal Highway Administration Funds and 

Closeout - Amendment and Administrative Modification to the FY 2014-2018 MAG 
Transportation Improvement Program, and to the 2035  Regional Transportation Plan 

 
Vice Chair Albert invited Ms. Teri Kennedy to present this item. 
 
Ms. Kennedy stated that she issued the notice for closeout funds on December 10, 2015, 
which was five days after the FAST act was announced. She stated that actual funding 
amounts are not available yet, and once they are, FHWA will provide them to the states 
which will then issue suballocated funding amounts to COGs and MPOs.  
 
Ms. Kennedy stated that MAG received four requests for project advances, nine requests 
for funding increases, and six requests for Federal design funding. She noted that there are 
corrections to the printed handout provided to Committee members and presented the 
corrections table to the Committee. She noted that an incorrect project had been included 
from Maricopa County and that it should have been an ITS project. She noted that Riggs 
Road should have been shown as an advancement as well as an increase. She noted that 
there is a modification to the distribution of the full balance of street sweeper funding and 
the final three agencies awarded funding for street sweepers are Glendale, Peoria, and 
Mesa. She stated that the amount available for closeout has increased related to Glendale 
deferring an additional project and that SCMPO will loan STP funding to the region to be 
paid back in 2017. 
 
Ms. Kennedy stated that the net adjustment after the corrections is an increase of $129,000 
total. She stated that MAG is still working with estimated funding amounts and presented 
some of the financial considerations. She stated that if the closeout process had not been 
started that funding would not be programmed in time for the June 1st deadline and the 

 
 5 



region would lose funding. She stated that the actual funding amounts from the FAST act 
would be available the next week which would be used if the Committee recommends the 
second proposed scenario. She noted that STP allocations from the FAST Act will 
increase, but modifications to the program turn it into a block grant and MAG will have to 
look at how the suballocations work to meet the RTP goals. 
 
Ms. Kennedy stated that another consideration is that projects may run into snags at 
ADOT. She stated that there is a small contingency plan to address this, and the Arterial 
Life Cycle Program (ALCP), transit projects, or the Regional Freeway and Highway 
Program (RFHP) can come in to use the available obligation authority. She stated that the 
actual amount of obligation authority increased by 1% from the estimate that Regional 
Council looked at, which brought another $1 million to the region and is why the amount of 
closeout funding is higher than what was originally in the initial memo. 
 
Ms. Kennedy stated that there are two proposed scenario options. She stated that option 
one is proposed to fund all eligible advancements, increases, and design funding requests 
submitted along with the noted corrections. She noted that this option leaves $11.4 million 
to the ALCP to address with project advancements. She stated that an ALCP project with a 
substantial conversion amount has had a delay and will not need the programmed money 
this year. She stated that this is not new money so once the project starts up it will need its 
money.  
 
Ms. Kennedy stated that option two is the same as option one except with an extended 
deadline for 2016 design funding requests. She noted that there are some considerations to 
do Federally funded design. She stated that there will be approximately $1.5 million 
additional funding available for design in 2016 for 2018 construction projects. She noted 
that the application should be corrected to say 2035 RTP. 

 
Mr. Scott Lowe asked that if option two is recommended and all funding requests are 
approved that they would be able to proceed with their projects even with the February 
11th deadline for additional requests. 

 
Ms. Kennedy responded that if option two is recommended, any additional requests 
received will be addressed at the next TRC meeting and all current project requests will 
move forward to Management Committee as a TIP amendment that can be taken to the 
ADOT Local Public Agency (LPA) section to get the project started. She added that 
additional projects would have an even shorter timeline as they would be approved by 
Regional Council in March, so projects need to get to LPA as soon as possible. She noted 
that there is less paperwork for Certification Acceptance (CA) agencies and non-CA 
agencies should talk to LPA immediately. 
 
Mr. Kini Knudson stated that the City of Phoenix decided to not request any closeout 
funding. He noted that scenario two respects the closeout process but allows member 
agencies to respond to new information as well. He asked what funding adjustments would 
be made. Ms. Kennedy responded that she thinks there will be $1-2 million in additional 
funding available. 
 
Mr. Mike Gent expressed his appreciation to Ms. Kennedy and MAG for all of the work 
and stated that this process helps to advance projects that are important to deliver benefits 

 
 6 



to the community. He stated that he echoes Mr. Knudson’s comments and supports option 
two. 

 
Mr. Jeff Martin moved to recommend approval of closeout scenario option two including 
the revisions as presented. Mr. Mike Gent seconded the motion. 
 
Vice Chair Albert inquired if there is an option to modify submitted requests. Ms. Kennedy 
noted that once they have been recommended by this action, the closeout process is done. 
She stated that there are some requests for design funding for 2019 construction projects 
that have complicated design. She noted that there are over $5 million in possible design 
funding requests for both 2018 and 2019 projects. She provided a list of agencies for 
FY2018 that could request to receive Federal funding for design under the extended period 
to request design. 
 
Mr. Mike Kies stated that ADOT has not yet provided official FAST Act suballocations, 
but that the January ledger will be available on the following Monday which will reflect the 
updated suballocations. 
 
There being no further discussion of the motion, Vice Chair Albert called for a vote. The 
motion carried unanimously. 
 

8. Request for Future Agenda Items 
 

Mr. Eric Anderson stated that at the next meeting of the Committee there will be a 
presentation on the placement of a DPS officer in the ADOT Traffic Operations Center 
(TOC) that was given to Regional Council. He stated that the benefits of having a DPS 
officer in the TOC have far exceeded expectations. 

 
9. Member Agency Update 
 

Mr. Cato Esquivel introduced Ms. Rebecca Zook and noted she will be replacing him as 
Goodyear’s representative. 
 
Mr. Clem Ligocki stated that Mr. Benny Dominguez had retired from MCDOT and that 
Mr. Kevin Kottmer is the new maintenance contact. 
 
Mr. Mike Gent welcomed Mr. David Janover as the City of Avondale’s new representative 
on the Committee. 

 
10. Next Meeting Date 
 

The next regular Transportation Review Committee meeting will be scheduled for 
Thursday, February 25, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. in the MAG Office, Saguaro Room.  

 
The meeting was adjourned at 10:36 a.m. 

 
 7 


